
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Resource Allocation Sub (Policy and Resources) 
Committee 

 
Date: THURSDAY, 2 NOVEMBER 2023 

Time: 9.30 am 

Venue: COMMITTEE ROOMS, 2ND FLOOR, WEST WING, GUILDHALL 

 
Members: Deputy Christopher Hayward 

(Chairman) 
Deputy Henry Colthurst (Deputy 
Chairman) 
Deputy Randall Anderson 
Deputy Keith Bottomley 
Tijs Broeke 
Jason Groves 
Caroline Haines 
Deputy Shravan Joshi 
 

Catherine McGuinness 
Alderman Professor Michael Mainelli 
Deputy Andrien Meyers 
Deputy Alastair Moss 
Alderman Sir William Russell 
Ruby Sayed 
Tom Sleigh 
Deputy Sir Michael Snyder 
Deputy James Thomson 

 
Enquiries: Polly Dunn 

polly.dunn@cityoflondon.gov.uk 
 
 

Accessing the virtual public meeting 
Members of the public can observe all virtual public meetings of the City of London 

Corporation by following the below link: 
https://www.youtube.com/@CityofLondonCorporation/streams  

 
A recording of the public meeting will be available via the above link following the end of 
the public meeting for up to one civic year. Please note: Online meeting recordings do not 
constitute the formal minutes of the meeting; minutes are written and are available on the 
City of London Corporation’s website. Recordings may be edited, at the discretion of the 
proper officer, to remove any inappropriate material. 
 
Whilst we endeavour to livestream all of our public meetings, this is not always possible 
due to technical difficulties. In these instances, if possible, a recording will be uploaded 
following the end of the meeting. 

 
Ian Thomas CBE 

Town Clerk and Chief Executive 
 

Public Document Pack

https://www.youtube.com/@CityofLondonCorporation/streams


2 
 

AGENDA 
 
 
1. APOLOGIES 

 
 

2. MEMBERS DECLARATIONS UNDER THE CODE OF CONDUCT IN RESPECT OF 
ITEMS ON THE AGENDA 

 
 

3. MINUTES 
 To agree the public minutes of the Sub-Committee meeting held on 5 October 2023. 

 
 For Decision 
 (Pages 5 - 8) 

 
4. CAPITAL FUNDING UPDATE 
 Report of the Chamberlain. 

 
 For Decision 
 (Pages 9 - 22) 

 
5. QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF THE SUB-

COMMITTEE 
 
 

6. ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS URGENT 
 
 

7. EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC 
 MOTION – That under Section 100(A) of the Local Government Act 1972, the public 

be excluded from the meeting for the following items on the grounds that they involve 
the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in Part 1 of the Schedule 12A of 
the Local Government Act.  
 
 

Part 2 – Non-Public Agenda 
 

  
 

8. NON-PUBLIC MINUTES 
 To agree the non-public minutes of the Sub-Committee meeting held on 5 October 

2023. 
 

 For Decision 
 (Pages 23 - 24) 

 
 
 



3 
 

9. COMMUNITY INFRASTRUCTURE LEVY (CIL) AND ON STREET PARKING 
RESERVE OSPR) CAPITAL BIDS (QUARTER 2 - 2023/24) & CAPITAL BIDS FOR 
2024/25 CAPITAL PROGRAMME 

 Joint report of the Chamberlain and Executive Director Environment. 
 

 For Decision 
 (Pages 25 - 52) 

 
10. GW5: GUILDHALL COOLING PLANT REPLACEMENT 
 Report of the City Surveyor. 

 
 For Decision 
 (Pages 53 - 72) 

 
11. DELEGATED AUTHORITY DECISIONS AND ARREARS UPDATE FOR 

GUILDHALL AND WALBROOK WHARF - 1ST APRIL TO 30TH SEPTEMBER 2023 
 Report of the City Surveyor. 

 
 For Discussion 
 (Pages 73 - 78) 

 
12. QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF THE SUB-

COMMITTEE 
 
 

13. ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS URGENT AND 
WHICH THE SUB-COMMITTEE AGREE SHOULD BE CONSIDERED WHILST THE 
PUBLIC ARE EXCLUDED 

 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



RESOURCE ALLOCATION SUB (POLICY AND RESOURCES) COMMITTEE 
 

Thursday, 5 October 2023  
 

Minutes of the meeting of the Resource Allocation Sub (Policy and Resources) 
Committee held at Committee Rooms, 2nd Floor, West Wing, Guildhall on Thursday, 

5 October 2023 at 9.00 am 
 

Present 
 
Members: 
Deputy Christopher Hayward (Chairman) 
Deputy Henry Colthurst (Deputy Chairman) 
Deputy Randall Anderson 
Jason Groves 
 

Caroline Haines 
Alderman Professor Michael Mainelli 
Deputy Sir Michael Snyder 
Deputy James Thomson 
 

 
In Attendance 
  
 
Officers: 
Michael Cogher - Comptroller and City Solicitor 

Caroline Al-Beyerty - Chamberlain 

Sonia Virdee - Chamberlain’s Department 

Gregory Moore - Deputy Town Clerk 

Polly Dunn - Town Clerk’s Department 

Dionne Corradine - Chief Strategy Officer 

Emily Tofield - Executive Director of Corporate Communications and 
External Affairs 

Ian Hughes - Environment Department 

Peter Young - City Surveyor’s Department 

Paul Friend - City Surveyor’s Department 

John Galvin - City Surveyor’s Department 

Jack Joslin - City Bridge Foundation 

Emily Slatter - Office of the Policy Chairman 

 
 

1. APOLOGIES  
Apologies were received from Tijs Broeke, Tom Sleigh, Deputy Shravan Joshi, 
Catherine McGuinness and Ruby Sayed. 
 
Both Tom Sleigh and Ruby Sayed observed the meeting virtually. 
 

2. MEMBERS DECLARATIONS UNDER THE CODE OF CONDUCT IN 
RESPECT OF ITEMS ON THE AGENDA  
There were no declarations. 
 

Page 5

Agenda Item 3



In non-public session, Alderman Professor Michael Mainelli declared an interest 
in respect of item 12, as he held a tenancy in the affected area.  
 

3. MINUTES  
RESOLVED, that the public minutes and non-public summary of the Sub-
Committee meeting held on 5 September 2023, be approved as an accurate 
record. 
 

4. COMMUNITY INFRASTRUCTURE LEVY NEIGHBOURHOOD FUND - 
APPLICATIONS FOR APPROVAL  
Members considered a report of the Managing Director of City Bridge 
Foundation concerning the Community Infrastructure Levy Neighbourhood 
Fund – and various updates for Approval. 
 
RESOLVED, that Members: 
 

1. note the current position of the CILNF, the launch of the public consultation and 
the amendment to the timeline; 

2. approve that the CILNF re-opens to large applications of between £50,000 to 
£500,000; 

3. note the decision by the Planning and Transportation Committee to designate 
the Barbican and Golden Lane Neighbourhood Forum and Area; and 

4. approve interim arrangements to consult with the above Forum on applications 
to the wider CILNF. 

 
5. *CITY SURVEYOR’S BUSINESS PLAN 2023-28 QUARTER 1 2023/24 

UPDATE  
Members received a report of the City Surveyor regarding the Departmental 
Business Plan for 2023-28 and an update on Quarter 1 (2023/24) activity. 
 
RESOLVED, that the report be noted. 
 

6. *THE CITY SURVEYOR’S CORPORATE AND DEPARTMENTAL RISK 
REGISTER  
Members received a report of the City Surveyor regarding the Corporate and 
Departmental Risk Register. 
 
RESOLVED, that the report be noted. 
 

7. *22/23 ENERGY & DECARBONISATION PERFORMANCE Q3 UPDATE FOR 
THE OPERATIONAL PORTFOLIO  
Members received a report of the City Surveyor regarding an update on the 
2022/2023 energy and decarbonisation performance for Quarter 3, within the 
City’s operational property portfolio. 
 
RESOLVED, that the report be noted. 
 

8. QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF THE SUB-
COMMITTEE  
There were no questions. 
 

Page 6



9. ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS URGENT  
There was no other business. 
 

10. EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC  
RESOLVED, That under Section 100(A) of the Local Government Act 1972, the 
public be excluded from the meeting for the following items on the grounds that 
they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in Part 1 of the 
Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act.  

 
11. NON-PUBLIC MINUTES  

RESOLVED, that the non-public minutes of the Sub-Committee meeting held 
on 5 September 2023, be approved as an accurate record. 
 

12. TFL AND REINSTATEMENT OF ARTHUR STREET SHAFT (BANK STATION 
CAPACITY UPGRADE PROJECT)  
Members considered a joint report of the Executive Director of Environment 
and the City Surveyor concerning Transport for London and the reinstatement 
of Arthur Street Shaft following the Bank Station Capacity Upgrade Project. 
 

13. PROGRESS UPDATE ON NET ZERO BUILDING DESIGN STANDARDS  
Members received a report of the City Surveyor regarding a progress update on 
Net Zero Building Design Standards. 
 

14. QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF THE SUB-
COMMITTEE  
There were no questions. 
 

15. ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS URGENT 
AND WHICH THE SUB-COMMITTEE AGREE SHOULD BE CONSIDERED 
WHILST THE PUBLIC ARE EXCLUDED  
There was no other business. 
 

 
 
The meeting ended at 9.29 am 
 
 
 

 

Chairman 
 
 
 
Contact Officer: Polly Dunn 
polly.dunn@cityoflondon.gov.uk 
 

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 8



Committee(s): 
Resource Allocation Sub Committee  
Policy & Resources Committee 
 

Date(s): 
2 November 2023 
16 November 2023 

Subject: 
Capital Funding Update 

 
Public 
 

Which outcomes in the City Corporation’s 
Corporate Plan does this proposal aim to impact 
directly?  

The schemes for which 
funding is now 
requested span across 
a range of corporate 
outcomes 

For City Bridge Foundation (CBF), which outcomes 
in the BHE Bridging London 2020 – 2045 Strategy 
does this proposal aim to support? 

 

Does this proposal require extra revenue and/or 
capital spending? 

Yes  

If so, how much? £4.928m 

What is the source of Funding? £4.634m from City Fund 
Reserves, £0.286 from 
City Cash, £0.08m from 
CBF  

Has this Funding Source been agreed with the 
Chamberlain’s Department? 

Yes 

Report of:  
The Chamberlain 

For Decision 

Report author: 
Yasin Razaaq, Capital and Projects Manager 

 
Summary 

This report follows on from previous papers on capital prioritisation, the capital review 
and the 2020/21, 2021/22 and 2022/23 rounds of annual capital bids. 

Members are reminded of the two-step funding mechanism via the annual capital bid 
process:   

• Firstly, within available funding, ‘in principle’ approval to the highest priority bids 
is sought and appropriate provisions are set aside in the annual capital and 
revenue budgets within the MTFPs.   

• Secondly, following scrutiny via the gateway process to provide assurance of 
robust option appraisal, project management and value for money, Members 
are asked to confirm that these schemes remain a priority for which funding 
should be released at this time.  
 

The purpose of this report is for Members to consider release (following gateway 
approvals) to allow schemes to progress.  

The approved annual capital bids for 2020/21 currently total £87.1m of which draw-
downs of £37.8m have been approved to date.  A schedule of the current 2020/21 
allocations is included as Appendix 1 for information.  
 

Page 9

Agenda Item 4



The second annual bid round for 2021/22 granted in principle funding approval to bids 
with a current value of £82.5m of which draw-downs of £13.1m have been agreed.  A 
schedule of the current 2021/22 allocations is included in Appendix 2. 
 
The approved annual capital bids for 2022/23 total £26.7m of which draw-downs of 
£6.6m have been agreed. A schedule of the current 2022/23 allocations is included in 
Appendix 3. 
 
Release of £4.928m to allow progression of five schemes summarised in Table 2 
‘Project Funding Requests’ is now requested. 

Recommendations 

Resource Allocation Sub Committee Members and Policy & Resources Committee 
are requested to:- 

(i) To review the schemes summarised in Table 2 and, particularly in the context of 
the current financial climate, to confirm their continued essential priority for 
release of funding at this time and accordingly: 
 

(ii) To agree the release of up to £1.104m for the schemes progressing to the next 
Gateway in Table 2 from the reserves of City Fund (£4.604m), City Cash (0.21m) 
and City Bridge Foundation (0.08m) 

 
(iii) To agree release of £0.076m of City Cash contingency. 

 

Main Report 

Background 

1. As part of the fundamental review, Members agreed the necessity for effective 
prioritisation of capital and SRP projects, with central funding allocated in a 
measured way.  This has been achieved via the annual capital bid process which 
applies prioritisation criteria to ensure that corporate objectives are met, and 
schemes are affordable. 

 
2. The following criteria against which capital and supplementary revenue projects 

are assessed have been agreed as:  
i. Must be an essential scheme (Health and Safety or Statutory Compliance, 

Fully/substantially reimbursable, Major Renewal of Income Generating Asset, 
Spend to Save with a payback period < 5 years.) 

ii. Must address a risk on the Corporate Risk register, or the following items that 
would otherwise be escalated to the corporate risk register:  

a. Replacement of critical end of life components for core services;  
b. Schemes required to deliver high priority policies; and  
c. Schemes with a high reputational impact.  

iii. Must have a sound business case, clearly demonstrating the negative impact 
of the scheme not going ahead, i.e. penalty costs or loss of income, where 
these are material.  

The above criteria were used as the basis for prioritising the annual capital bids 
and should continue to be applied when consider release of funds. 

Page 10



3. The scope of schemes subject to this prioritisation relates only to those funded 
from central sources, which include the On-Street Parking Reserve, Community 
Infrastructure Levy (CIL), flexible external contributions and allocations from the 
general reserves of City Fund, City’s Cash or CBF1. This means that projects 
funded from most ring-fenced funds, such as the Housing Revenue Account, 
Designated Sales Pools and Cyclical Works Programmes are excluded, as well 
as schemes wholly funded from external grants, and tenant/developer 
contributions e.g. under S278 agreements and S106 deposits. 
  

4. Members are reminded of the two-step funding mechanism via the annual capital 
bid process:   

• Firstly, ‘in principle’ approval to the highest priority bids within available 
funding is sought and appropriate provisions are set aside in the annual capital 
and revenue budgets and the MTFPs.   

• Secondly, following scrutiny via the gateway process to provide assurance of 
robust option appraisal, project management and value for money, RASC is 
asked to confirm that these schemes remain a priority for which funding should 
be released at this time. 
 

Current Position 

5. From the 2020/21 bid round, central funding of £87.1m is currently allocated for 
new capital bids across the three main funds. To date, £37.8m has been drawn 
down to allow 37 of these schemes to be progressed. A schedule of the current 
2020/21 allocations is included in Appendix 1 for information. 
 

6. Central funding of a further £82.5m across the three main funds for the 2021/22 
new bids is currently allocated, of which drawdowns of £13.2m has been approved 
in respect of 19 schemes. A schedule of the 2021/22 allocations is included in 
Appendix 2 for information. 

 
 
7. Central Funding of £26.7m has been agreed for the 2022/23 new bids of which 

draw-downs of £6.6m have been approved in respect of 12 schemes. A schedule 
of the 2022/23 allocations is included in Appendix 3 for information.  
 

8. In addition, there are a small number of ongoing schemes for which funding was 
allocated as part of the Fundamental Review (such as Wanstead Park Ponds). 

 
9. All schemes in this report have been through the capital review as part of a 

reprioritisation and value-engineering exercise to mitigate the effects of significant 
inflationary pressures. These pressures need to be carefully managed over the 
short to medium term to prevent a potential significant overspend. In instances 
where capital projects are approved assuming any element of external funding, 
risks must be managed to prevent additional unplanned cost pressures impacting 
on central funding.  

 
  
                                                           
1 Contributions from Bridge House Estates are limited to its share of corporate schemes such as works 
to the Guildhall Complex or corporate IT systems and are subject to the specific approval of the Bridge 
House Estates Board. 

Page 11



Current Requests for the Release of Funding 

10. There are five schemes with ‘in principle’ funding approved as part of the capital 
bids that have progressed through the gateways, for which release of up to 
£4.928m is requested: 

 

 

11. Further details of the individual schemes are provided in Appendix 4 attached. 

12. In accordance with step two of the capital funding mechanism, Members will wish 
to confirm that these schemes remain a priority for funding to be released at this 
time particularly in the context of the current financial climate. 

13. Funding for these schemes can be met from the provisions set aside from the 
reserves of the City Fund £4.634m, £0.210m from City Cash and £0.008m from 
CBF. 

14. The Parliament Hill athletics track requires £0.076m from city cash contingency to 
meet a £0.3m budget deficit with remaining amount funded through local risk. 

 

Conclusion 
 

15. Members are requested to: 
 

1) review the above and consider in the context of the completion of the capital 
review and the current financial climate their continued support for the schemes 
requesting internal resources to proceed, and;  

2) approve the associated release of funding in Table 2. 

3) approve release of city fund contingency of £0.076m 

 
 
Appendices 

Appendix 1 - 2020/21 Approved Bids 
Appendix 2 - 2021/22 Approved Bids 
Appendix 3 - 2022/23 Approved Bids 
Appendix 4 - Requests for Release of Funding – Scheme Details 
 

Page 12



 

Background Papers 

• Annual Capital Prioritisation Report, 12 December 2019 (Non-Public). 

• Prioritisation of Remaining 2020/21 Annual Capital Bids (Deferred from 
December 2019 Meeting), 23 January 2020 (Non-Public) 

• Re-prioritisation of 2020/21 Approved Capital Bids, 18 September 2020 (Non-
Public) 

• Capital Funding – Prioritisation of 2021/22 Annual Capital Bids – Stage 2 
Proposals, 10 December 2020 (Public) 

• Capital Funding – Prioritisation of 2022/23 Annual Capital Bids – Stage 2 Final 
Proposals 

• Capital Review 2022 – final recommendations to RASC 
 
 

Yasin Razaaq 
Capital & Projects Manager 
Email: Yasin.Razaaq@cityoflondon.gov.uk 

 
 
 

 

Page 13



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 14



Appendix 1
Approved Bids 2020/21 THIS REPORT THIS REPORT

Project Name 

City Fund                    

£'m

City's Cash  

£'m

BHE

£'m

 Total Funding 

Allocation

£'m 

 Fundng 

Allocation After 

Re-

prioritisation 

 Release of 

Funding 

Previously 

agreed  

 

Reallocation 

of Funding 

now 

requested 

 Release of 

Funding now 

requested 

Critical End of Life Replacement

Barbican Replacement of Art Gallery Chiller 0.300 -                   -                             0.300                   0.300 0.018         

Car Park - London Wall Joints and Waterproofing 2.000 -                   -                             2.000                   2.000 -              

Car Park - Hampstead Heath, East Heath Car Park Resurface -                0.415 -                             0.415                   0.415 0.387         

Central Criminal Court - Replacement for Heating, Cooling and Electrics for the 

East Wing Mezzanine including the sheriff’s apartments.***** 1.000 -                   -                             1.000                   0.626 0.626         

Finsbury Circus Garden Re-instatement 2.558 -                   -                             2.558                   2.558 2.542         

Guildhall - North and East Wing Steam Generator replacement – including Art 

Gallery 0.744 0.396 0.060                   1.200                   0.002 0.002         

Guildhall - West Wing - Space Cooling - Chiller Plant & Cooling Tower 

Replacement ****** 1.860 0.990 0.150                   3.000                   4.702 4.554         

Guildhall event spaces - Audio & Visual  replacement / upgrade -                0.330 -                             0.330                   0.330 0.045         

Guildhall Yard - Refurbishment/ Replacement of Paviours -                3.000 -                             3.000                   3.000 -              

I.T - Computer Equipment rooms (CER) Uninterupted Power Supplies 

(UPS)Upgrades and Replacements 0.090 0.100 0.010                   0.200                   0.200 0.200         

I.T - Essential Computer (Servers) operating system refresh programme 0.068 0.075 0.008                   0.151                   0.095 0.095         

I.T - Personal device replacement (Laptops, Desktops and tablet/mobile device) 1.013 1.125 0.112                   2.250                   2.250 2.250         

I.T - Rationalisation of Financials, HR & Payroll Systems (ERP project) 2.654 2.949 0.295                   5.898                   9.800 0.68            

I.T - Telephony replacement  *** 0.873 0.343 0.034                   1.250                          -   -              

LMA : Replacement of Fire Alarm, Chillers and Landlords Lighting and Power 1.397 -                   -                             1.397                   1.397 0.145         

Oracle Property Management System Replacement 0.713 0.380 0.058                   1.151                   1.151 1.150         

Structural - Lindsey Street Bridge Strengthening 5.000 -                   -                             5.000                   5.000 0.030         

Structural - Dominant House Footbridge******** 1.025 -                   -                             1.025                   0.575 0.575         
Structural - West Ham Park Playground Refurbishment -                1.279 -                             1.279                   1.279 0.863         

Fully or substantially reimbursable

Barbican Turret John Wesley High Walk 0.043 -                   -                             0.043                   0.043 0.043         
Chingford Golf Course Development Project -                0.075 -                             0.075                   0.075 -              

High Profile Policy Initiative

Bank Junction Transformation (All Change at Bank) 4.000 -                   -                             4.000                   4.000 4.000         

Culture Mile Implementation Phase 1 incl CM experiments and Culture Mile 

Spine 0.580 -                   -                             0.580                   0.580 0.580         

I.T - Smarter working for Members and Officers 0.113 0.125 0.013                   0.251                   0.185 0.185         

Rough Sleeping - assessment hub******* 1.000 -                   -                             1.000                   1.196 1.498         

Rough Sleeping High Support Hostel - Option 3 0.500 -                   -                             0.500                   0.500 0.500         
Secure City Programme 15.852 -                   -                           15.852                 15.852 7.174         

Statutory Compliance/Health and Safety

Barbican Exhibition Halls 5.000 -                   -           5.000 1.549 1.548         

Barbican Podium Waterproofing, Drainage and Landscaping Works (Ben Jonson, 

Breton & Cromwell Highwalk) Phase 2 – 1st Priority 13.827 -                   -           13.827 13.827 2.417         

Covid19 Phase 3 Transportation Response*                -   -                   -                                    -   0.568 0.568         

City of London Primary Academy Islington (COLPAI) temporary site -                0.300 -           0.300 0.583 0.583         

Golden Lane Lighting and Accessibility 0.500 -                   -                             0.500                   0.500 0.500         

Guildhall - Great Hall - Internal Stonework Overhaul -                2.000 -           2.000                   2.000 1.740         

Guildhall - Installation of Public Address & Voice Alarm (PAVA) and lockdown 

system at the Guildhall (Security Recommendation) 0.930 0.495 0.075 1.500                   1.500 0.118         

I.T - Critical Security Works agreed by the DSSC ** 0.112 0.125 0.013 0.250                          -   -              
I.T - GDPR and Data Protection Compliance in addition saving money in being 

able to share and find information quickly 0.090 0.100 0.010 0.200                   0.200 -              

Confined and Dangerous Spaces - Barbican Centre 2.000 -                   -           2.000                   2.000 0.098         

Confined and Dangerous Spaces - GSMD -                0.400 -           0.400                   0.400 0.019         

Fire Safety - Car Park London Wall - Ventilation, electrics, lighting and fire alarm 

works 1.370 -                   -           1.370                   1.370 0.240             

Fire Safety - Works in car parks 1.032 -                   -           1.032                   1.032 0.699         

Fire Safety - Frobisher Crescent, Barbican Estate (compartmentation)  * 0.550 -                   -           0.550                   1.203 1.203         

Fire Safety - Smithfield sprinkler head replacement and fire door replacement. -                0.150 -                             0.150                   0.150 0.020         

Queen's Park Public Toilet Rebuild -                0.380 -                             0.380                          -   -              
Spitalfields Flats Fire Door Safety 0.146 -                   -                             0.146                   0.146 -              

Spend to save with a payback < 5 years

Energy programme of  lighting and M&E upgrade works (Phase 1)**** 0.440 0.489 0.049 0.978 0.268 0.165         

I.T - GDPR Compliance Project Unstructured data 0.112 0.125 0.013                   0.250                          -   -              

Wanstead Flats Artificial Grass Pitches (spend to save > 5 years)                -                    -             -                            -                     1.700 -              
The Monument Visitor Centre -                2.500 -                             2.500                          -   -              

Total Approved Funding Bids 69.492 18.646        0.900  89.038               87.107               37.822       -                0.240             

Previous Funding Allocation 89.038               

Net reductions from previous reprioritisation exercise (September 2020) 4.032-                 

*      Reallocated from the 2021/22 annual bids and fundamental review schemes 0.653                 

*  £0.500m of capital funding foregone in place of revenue funding solution (telephony/security) 0.500-                 

*** £0.250m of capital funding foregone in place of a revenue funding solution (telephony/security) 0.250-                 

****Reallocation of £0.229m to 2021/22 scheme (BEMS Phase 1) 0.229-                 

****£0.246m of central funding no longer required and returned to the centre 0.246-                 

*****£0.374 reallocated to Walbrook Wharf M&E replacement project 0.374-                 

****** £0.269 central contingency reallocated to meet increased cost 0.269                 

******* £0.196m increase at G5 approved under Urgency 0.196                 

******** £0.450m of central funding no longer required and returned to the centre 0.450-                 

Additional amount for ERP( October 2022) 3.032                 

87.107               

Page 15



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 16



Appendix 2
Approved Bids 2021/22 THIS REPORT THIS REPORT

Project Name 

City Fund                    

£'m

City's 

Cash  

£'m

CBF

£'m

 Total 

Funding 

Allocation

£'m 

 Latest Funding 

Allocation after 

Reprioritisation 

 Release of 

Funding 

Previously 

agreed  

 Reallocation 

of Funding 

now 

requested 

 Release of 

Funding now 

requested 

Critical End of Life Replacement

OSD - Tower Hill Play Area Replacement Project         0.120           0.120                       0.120 0.120

SVY - BEMS Upgrade Project-CPG Estate – Phase 1*** 0.507 0.375 0.022           0.904                       1.133 0.626

SVY - Smithfield Condenser Pipework Replacement 0.564           0.564                       0.564 

CHB - IT SD WAN /MPLS replacement 0.320 0.145 0.035           0.500                       0.100 0.100

CHB - IT LAN Support to Replace Freedom Contract 0.096 0.043       0.011           0.150                       0.150 

CHB - Libraries IT Refresh 0.220           0.220                       0.220 
BBC - Barbican Centre - Catering Block Extraction 0.400           0.400                       0.400 0.024

High Profile Policy Initiative

DBE - Secure City Programme Year 2 4.739           4.739                       4.739 1.700
SVY - Guildhall Complex Masterplan - initial feasibility 

and design work 0.350           0.350                       0.350 0.350

Statutory Compliance/Health and Safety

DCCS - Fire Doors Barbican Estate* 20.000 20.000 19.597 0.275
SVY - St Lawrence Jewry Church - Essential works (Top-Up 

Funding) 2.565 2.565 2.565 2.136

SVY - Denton Pier and Pontoon Overhaul Works 1.000 1.000 1.000 0.050

OSD - Hampstead Heath Swimming Facilities - Safety, 

Access and Security Improvements 0.755 0.755 0.755 0.755

DBE - Public Realm Security Programme 1.238 1.238 1.238 0.027

DBE - Beech Street Transportation and Public Realm 

project (Top-Up Bid) 0.900 0.900 0.900 0.191
MAN - Central Criminal Courts, Fire Safety and 

associated public address system (Top-up bid) 0.683 0.683 0.683

MAN - Central Criminal Court Cell Area Ducting and 

Extract System Balancing 1.000 1.000 1.000 0.220
SVY - Riverbank House, Swan Lane - repairs to foreshore 

river defence  0.500 0.500 0.500 0.438

CHB - Public Services Network replacement 0.064 0.029 0.007 0.100 0.000
GSMD - Guildhall School - Silk Street Ventilation Heating 

and Cooling 2.000 2.000 2.000 )

GSMD - Guildhall School - Milton Court Correction of 

Mechanical Systems 0.600 0.600 0.600 0.200
GSMD - Guildhall School - John Hosier Ventilation and 

Temperature Control 0.700 0.700 0.700 )
CHB - IT Security** 0.192 0.087 0.021 0.300 0.000

Spend to save with a payback < 5 years

SVY - Energy Reduction Programme – Phase 2  0.194 0.181           0.375                       0.375 
Sub-Total - Bids Fulfilling the Funding Criteria excluding 32.173 8.394 0.096 40.663 39.689 7.212 0.000                      -   

Climate Action :

DBE - Public Realm (Pedestrian Priority) 6.050           6.050                       6.050 2.454

OSD - Climate Action Strategy 2.120           2.120                       2.120 0.795

DBE - Embed climate resilience measures into Public 

Realm works (Cool Streets and Greening) 6.800           6.800                       6.800 2.580 3.842             
SVY -Energy Efficiency / Net Zero Carbon - Investment 

Estate - City Fund 4.340           4.340                       4.340 
SVY - Energy Efficiency / Net Zero Carbon - Investment 

Estate - Strategic Estate City Fund 0.000                  -                                -   

SVY - Climate Resilience Measures 4.000 0.000           4.000                       4.000 
SVY - Climate Action Strategy Projects CPG  Operational 

Properties 11.723 7.138 0.649        19.510                    19.510 0.109
Sub-Total - Climate Action 32.913 9.258 0.649 42.820 42.820 5.938 0.000               3.842 

Total Bids Fulfilling the Funding Criteria 65.086 17.652 0.745 83.483 82.509 13.150 0.000 3.842

Previous Funding Allocation 83.483

£0.403m reallocated as top-up funding for the Frobisher Crescent Fire 

      Compartmentation Project (2020/21 Bid)* -0.403

£0.300m of capital funding foregone in place of a          

      revenue funding solution (telephony/security)** -0.300

£0.229 reallocated from savings on Energy Reduction Programme (2020/21 bid)*** 0.229

Re-prioritised in June 2022 under 'One in - One out' principle**** -0.500

Latest Funding Allocation 82.509

Page 17



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 18



Appendix 3
Approved Bids 2022/23 THIS REPORT THIS REPORT

Project Name

City Fund 

£'m

City's Cash 

£'m

CBF

£'m

Total 

Funding 

Allocation 

£'m

Fundng 

Allocation 

After Re-

prioritisation

 Release of 

Funding 

Previously 

agreed  

 Reallocation 

of Funding 

now 

requested 

 Release of 

Funding 

now 

requested 

Critical end of life replacement:

BEMS Upgrade Phase 2 - Heathrow Animal Reception Centre and various OS sites at Epping 0.150 0.100 - 0.250 0.250 0.248

IT - Members IT refresh (to align with new personal device roll-out for staff) 0.192 0.087 0.021 0.300 0.300 0.300

IT - Managed Service re-provisioning (one-off costs due to end of current contract)* 0.320 0.145 0.035 0.500 1.300 1.300 0

IT - Corporate Managed Print Service (one-off costs due to end of current contract)* 0.032 0.015 0.004 0.050 0.000

IT - Server Upgrade/replacement 0.064 0.029 0.007 0.100 0.100 0.100

Mansion House - essential roof repairs - 0.330 - 0.330 0.330

OS Hampstead Heath - Parliament Hill Athletics Track Resurfacing - 2.000 - 2.000 2.076 2.000 0.076

Guildhall School - Repairs to roof, expansion joint repairs and drainage and water systems 

(subject to holistic approach for highwalks, Barbican and School)
- 1.750 - 1.750 1.750

Health and Safety/Statutory Compliance: 0.000

Fire Safety - Guildhall Complex Fire Stopping all basement and plant areas 0.202 0.210 0.008 0.420 0.420 0.420

Fire Safety - Baynard House Car Park Sprinklers Replacement (remaining floors) 0.250 - - 0.250 0.250

Central Criminal Court: Cells Ventilation - Top-Up bid to meet full scope of statutory 

requirements.  (£1m bid agreed in principle as part of the 2021/22 capital bid round.)
1.000 - - 1.000 1.000

OS Epping Forest - COVID-19 Path Restoration Project - 0.250 - 0.250 0.250

OS Queen's Park Play Area and Sandpit replacement of equipment - 0.055 - 0.055 0.055

Barbican Centre - Replacement of Central Battery Units for Emergency Lighting system 0.280 - - 0.280 0.280

Guildhall School - Rigging infrastructures in Milton Court Concert Hall - 0.460 - 0.460 0.460

Guildhall School - Safe technical access and working at height - Silk Street Theatre - 0.345 - 0.345 0.345

Smithfield Market - Glass Canopy Overhaul - 0.300 - 0.300 0.300

Smithfield Market - East Poultry Avenue Canopy Repairs and Remedial Works - 0.600 - 0.600 0.600

Smithfield Car Park  - Ceiling Coating and Damp Works 1.050 1.050 1.050

Beech Street Transportation and Public Realm project top-up to deliver permanent air 

quality and associated public realm improvements following successful experiment. 2.500 - - 2.500 2.500

DCCS - Social Care Case Management System 0.144 - - 0.144 0.144

IT - Building Management System Wired Network to maximise efficiencies of new BEMS 

systems
0.083 0.038 0.009 0.130 0.130 0.130

High Priority Policy: 0.000

Secure City Programme - Year 3 8.936 - - 8.936 8.936 0.4

IT Security* 0.128 0.058 0.014 0.200 0.100 0.100

Guildhall Complex Masterplan - Redevelopment of North and West Wing Offices (top-up) 1.150 1.150 1.150 0.25

Bank Junction Improvements: All Change at Bank - top-up to cover inflation risk of delivering 

the minimal scheme
0.700 - - 0.700

0.700
0.700

IT - HR System Portal required in advance of the new ERP system delivery* 0.160 0.073 0.017 0.250 0.100 0.100

Walbrook Wharf Feasibility - 2027 and beyond 0.150 - - 0.150 0.150 0.150

St Paul's Gyratory - Design Development 0.556 - - 0.556 0.556 0.556

St Paul's Cathedral External Re-lighting 1.160 - - 1.160 1.160 0.250 0.350

Total Green Funding Bids 17.007 9.044 0.115 26.166 26.742 6.584 0.000 0.846

Previous Funding Allocation 26.166             

Re-prioritised in June 2022 under 'One in - One out' principle* 0.300-               

IT - Managed Service re-provisioning (one-off costs due to end of current contract)* 0.800               

City Cash Contingency 0.076               

26.742             

Page 19



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 20



Appendix 4 
 
Requests for Release of Funding – Scheme Details 
 
The following provides details of the five schemes for which approval to release central 
funding of £4.928m up to is now sought, as summarised in Table 2 of the main report. 
 
St Paul's Cathedral External Re-lighting release of £350k to progress the scheme 
 

• The project proposes to replace the ageing external lighting system at St Paul's 
Cathedral with a new innovative and energy efficient system. 

 

• Additional £350k to undertake the lighting tests and demonstration trials, 
progress the detailed design, and reach the next GW4; funded from the overall 
£1.16m capital bid 

 

• The overall estimate for the project is £2.075m with remaining funding provided 
from S106. 

 
 
 

Guildhall Spread of Fire/Smoke Stopping Works – all basement and plant areas, 
release of 420k for full implementation.   
 

• To address deficiencies in Fire stopping from the Ground Floor below in the 
NW /West Wing and Art Gallery and all plant areas.  

 

• Release of £420k is approved in order for this project to proceed and complete 
the scheme, through to GW6. 

 

• 420k was approved as part of the 22/23 bids. 
 
 
Parliament Hill Athletic Track Resurfacing, release from contingency of 76k for full 
implementation 
 

• Scheme aims to a full reconstruction of the eight lane Parliament Hill athletics 
track sited at Hampstead Heath.  A GW5 report was approved in June for the 
appointment of the contractor due to deliver the works.  It is understood that 
since then there have been additional cost increases of 300k, taking the overall 
project forecast to £2.3m. 

 

• The project has been subject to a number of delays and issues which have 
resulted in a projected overspend of £300k.  Delays have been caused by 
unexpected subsoil issues and drainage problems which were not identified in 
the scoping surveys plus the discovery of asbestos in one part of the site.  In 
addition, inclement weather over the summer resulted in contractors not being 
able to access the site for several weeks.  

 

 

Page 21



• The £224k is reallocated from the Hamstead heath local risk and 76k from City 
Cash contingency to complete the scheme. 

 

 
London Wall Car Park – Ventilation, Electrical, Fire Alarm and Sprinkler Works, 
release of 240k to progress the scheme 
 

• Project will install a new ventilation system, upgrade the power supply, replace 
the current electrical installation to bring this up to compliant standards, 
including replacing the lighting and sprinkler system, and installing a carbon 
monoxide and fire detection system at London Wall Car Park. 
 

• The 240k is required to carry out enabling works, including an upgrade of 
electrical supply and more detailed surveys to prepare the M&E design and 
tender documents to reach the next Gateway 3/4 
 

• The overall project estimate is £1.4m 
 
 

Climate Action Strategy – Cool Streets and Greening Programme, £3.842m for 
completion of phase 2 and 3 
 

• Cool Streets and Greening is a £6.8m Climate Action Strategy programme to 
pilot climate resilient streets and open spaces in the Square Mile. The 
programme is divided into 4 phases and the current funding drawdown 
request covers phases 2 and 3 which includes: 

 

• Re-landscaping of public spaces and streets at 10 sites across the square 
mile to incorporate climate resilience measures and greening 

 

• Replanting of 15 open spaces across the square mile with climate resilient 
along with planting of 100 street trees across the square mile. 
 

02/10/2023 P&R Delegated (for RASC) 
 

 
 
 

Page 22



Document is Restricted

Page 23

Agenda Item 8
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 25

Agenda Item 9
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 53

Agenda Item 10
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 57

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 61

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 65

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 69

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 71

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 73

Agenda Item 11
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 75

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 77

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	4 Capital Funding Update
	RASC Project Funding Update Nov 2023 Appendix 1 2020-21 Bids
	RASC Project Funding Update Nov 2023 Appendix 2 2021-22 Bids
	RASC Project Funding Update Report Nov 2023 Appendix 3 2022-23 Bids
	Appendix 4 Requests for Release of Funding – Scheme Details

	8 Non-Public Minutes
	9 Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) and On Street Parking Reserve OSPR) Capital Bids (Quarter 2 - 2023/24) & Capital Bids for 2024/25 Capital Programme
	10 GW5: Guildhall Cooling Plant Replacement
	Appendix 1 - GW5 GHC Project Coversheet
	Appendix 2. GW5 GHC Risk Register
	Appendix 3. PT8 - Guildhall - Chiller Replacement v1
	Appendix 4. GW5 GHC Cost Book
	Appendix 5. GHC GW5 Programme

	11 Delegated Authority decisions and Arrears Update for Guildhall and Walbrook Wharf - 1st April to 30th September 2023
	Appx 1 - Summary of transactions – 1 Apr to 30 Sept  2023
	Appx 2 - Rental Arrears


